
t;NITI<:U NATIONS

General_Assembly
FOlfl' \'. FOll IU'H S":SS ION

OJ]it:ial Records

THIRD COMMI'l'TEE
:l4th Ineetinq

held c.n
Tuesday, 31 October 1989

at 10 ao/n.
New Y':lrk

-------------------·----__....__........_ ...rn.... _

SUMMAHY m:t:ORO OF' TI-lE 24th Ml':I'~TING

CON'l'F.NTFi

AGENDA ITEM 94, INTF:RNATYONAL RES£ARCH AND TRAINING INSTITUTE FOR THE ADVANCEMENT
OF WOMEN (~.nt.illY.lil<D

AGENDA ITEM 103, E~IMINAT1QN OF ALL FORMS OF DISC:RIMINA~tON AGAINST WOMEN
(continued)

AGENDA ITEM 104, FORWARD-LOOKING ST~ATF.GIES FOR TijE ADVAN(~P.MEN~ OF WOMEN TO THE
YEAR 2000 (~~UL~)

(8) IMPLEMEN'rA'rION OF' THE NAIROBI FORWA.RO-LOOJ<ING S'l'RATF;GIES FOR THP.
ADVANCEMENT OF WOMEN

(b) UNITED NATIONS DE"ELOPME~~ FIJNO FOa WOMEN

(c) IMPROVEMENT OF THr. STr..T'JS OF WO~EN Iij TijE Sl::CQETARIAT

(d) IMPLEMENT~TION OF THE DECLAR~TION ON T~F: PARTICIPATION OF WOMEN IN
PROMOTING INTERNATIONAL PEACE ANn CO-OPERATION

(e) NATIONAL EXPERI~NC~ RELATING TO THE IMPROVP.MENT OF THE SITUATION OF WOMEN
IN RURAL AREAS

TIII~ "'llltlll' 'Uhl,','lln, ,111"\', Iinll
(''','rl'lh,"~ .hl1ulll hi' ,,'nl UII,II'I Ih,' 'ljllIlIlur,' "lulll"lllhl" nf ,h,' <I1'1,'/!ali""l'''m'rrn..d

\I,,,hln "Ill' 1\""'. "1 ,IJ,' ","" /11 11/1;'''1'11I'''' III Ilu' l'hl~1 lIllh,' I )ltklul M..",u," hlttlnk\ S..,'lIlln, H.nUl1I nn l~tl,

~ I:nll"" Nur,,,n, 1'1",,1, ,In,lln''lrpll,.II,'' Ill.1 ""I'~ III rh,' f\'~lIr,t

89-56744 1935S (E)

Distr. GENERAL
A/C.3/44/SR.24
16 November 1989
ENGLISH
ORIGINALs FRENCH

/ ...Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.3/44/SR.24
English
Page 2

The meeting was called to order at 10.15 a.m.

AGENDA ITEM 94: INTERNATIONAL RESEARCH AND TRAINING INSTITUTE FOR THE ADVANCEMENT
OF WOMEN (continued) (A/44/409 and Corr.l and 2-5/20743: A/44/416)

AGENDA ITEM 103: ELIMINATION OF ALL FORMS OF DISCRIMINATION AGAINST WOMEN
(continued) (A/44/38, A/44/238 and Corr.1, A/44/342, A/44/409-S/20743, A/44/411,
A/44/457, A/44/55l)

AGENDA ITEM 104: FORWARD-LOOKING STRATEGIES FOR THE ADVk~CEMENT OF WOMEN TO THE
YEAR 2000 (continued)

(a) IMPLEMENTATION OF THE NAIROBI FORWARD-LOOKING STRATEGIES FOR THE ADVANCEMENT
OF WOMEN (A/44/5ll)

(b) UNITED NATIONS DEVELOPMENT FUND FOR WOMEN (A/44/389)

(e) NATIONAL EXPERIENCE RELATING TO THE IMPROVEMENT OF THE SITUATION OF WOMEN IN
RURAL AREAS (A/44/5l6)

1. Mrs. JOSHI (Nepal) said that although the importance of the role of women in
development was increasingly recognized, they continued to suffer from
discrimination at work and at home, especially in countries where poverty,
unemployment, and illiteracy reigned. She noted with appreciation the many
initiatives taken by the United Nations and the specialized agencies to eliminate
all discrimination against women, inclUding the adoption of the NairObi
Forward-looking Strategies, while emphasizing the need for Member States to
redouble their efforts to bring about concrete results. The elimination of
discrimination against women required more than the adoption of legislation,
especially since that legislation was not always well understood by women,
particularly women in rural areas. The co-operative effort of all public bodies
was crucial if that legislation was to be implemented effectively.

2. The Constitution of Nepal guaranteed equal rights to men and women in all
spheres of life. Thus, unmarried daughters had the same inheritance rights as men,
and polygamy and child marriage were prohibited. The establishment of a women's
service co-ordination committee marked a turning point i.n the history of Nepalese
women. That committee was responsible for co-ordinating and integrating the
activities undertaken by the State and non-governmental organizations for the
advancement of women, as well as implementing the Forward-looking Strategies at the
national level. Thanks to the Committee's efforts, separate units for women in
development had been established in various ministries and given specific
responsibility for advocating and promoting the advancement of women, particularly
in rural areas, and, among other objectives, generating self-employment
opportunities for rural women and er . ing them to obtain bank credit for food
production.

I • •.
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



Ale. 3/44/SlL 24
Engl ish
Page J

3. The Women Development Division's fu~ction WbB to co-ordinate those activities
and to .erve aa the national focal point for womon in development. activities within
the South Asian Association for Re~ional Co-operation.

4. National development plans also emphasized the integration of wom~J1 in
development, in line with the recommendations of the Strategies. The Nepal Woman's
Orqanization played an important rre in that ceBpe~t, particularly in terms oC its
literacy and training programmes. ~any programmes for the integration of women In
development (such as production credit and small farmers' devolopment programmoR)
.erved a. poverty alleviation programmes and thus provided a model.

5. The first summit conference of the South Asian Association for Reg\onal
Co-operation had given dua attention to the question of women and dev~lopment, a~d

regUlar expert group meetings were held to exchange idean and experien~~ for
promoting the statuI of women 1n the region. It was important for th~ United
Nation. and the Ipecialized agencies to support n!ltional eHorts. The activities
of the United Nations Development Fund for Women in the Asian and Pacific
countries, partiCUlarly ~n the areas of agriculture and (o0d seCUtily Bnd the
collection and use of data demonstrating women's productive roles in the e{~onomy,

were especially significant.

6. Thfl roh of the ~ommhsion on the StatuB of Women, which monitorocl the
implementation of the Forward-looking Strategies, was also uignificnnt. Her
delegation agreed with the Commission that many of the objectives set at Nairobi
would not be achieved by the year 2000. That was why Member St8les should take
steps at t~e nationa~ level to support the activities of the United NatiollH
specialized a;encies and the non-governmental organizations.

7. Mi •• HYINT (Myanmar) said that in h~r country women enjoyed a unique status,
Because of the traditions and culture of the country there wero no legal, social or
other impediments to prevent them from participating in professional, poJitical or
other careers. Thus, marriage and divorce took plece by mutual consent and were
subject to customary law whic~ safeguarded the intere,ts an~ rights of the spouses
on a basis of complet~ equality, particularly with regard to inlleritan~e. Although
in most cases men were the breadwinners of the family, it was .;ho women '~ho UBUl3.l1y

managed the family finances.

8. Women were, moreover. tr~ated as men's equals in politics. It was therefore
not surprising that there had been no feminist movement in the country, with lhe
posBible exception. \)( the colonial pet!\)\.', when women hdd b~u l',) Ci.\Jhl (Ul: thu
abolition of the 1eqal provision which barred them from election to the legislntive
Council. However, those provisions had been quickly abolished and a woman had been
elected to the CounciJ as early as 1929.

9. The Forward-look in<;J Strategies served aB a rOEirJmal?' It wa~ l:hererol'r~ vi till1l'
important to rev lew the! r impl~mentfttion an~ to adj ust them whe revp r Il(,cl-'ssary.
Her delegation fully endorsed the system-wide comprehensive reporting system fo~

th. United Nation. aOopted by the Economic and Social Council to monitor, review

.I • ,- •

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.3/44/SR.24
English
Pagft 4

and appraise the implementation of those Strategies. It also supported the
Council'R ~eci.ion to extend the 1990 session of th~ Commission on the Stat~s o{
Women so that it could carry out its work more effectively.

10. She noted with satisfaction that 99 countries had ratified or acceded to the
Convention on Elimination of All Forms of Discrimination against Women and was
happy to witness the rapid expansion of the United Nations Development Fund for
Women.

11. Kr.A.L.CAS.'l'A&o (Colombia), speaking on agenda item 94, emphasized the importance
of the International Research and Training Institute for the Advancement of Women,
which was a source of up-to-date and relevant information on women's problems.
That was why consideration should be given to the report on the preliminary results
of the implementation of the Nairobi Strategi~s prepared by the Division for the
Advancement of Women of the United Nations Office at Vienna, which recommended that
United Nations bodies as well as the Institute should facilitate serious research
at all levels to improve the statiatics and studies on that question.

12. Turning to agenda item 104, and in particular tne Secretary-Genoral's report
on the implementation of the Nairobi Forward-looking Strategies {or the Advancement
of Women (A/44/S11), she said that special attention should be given to the
queation of development, because the status of woman was closely linked to the
economic situation. Without development there could be no improvement in the
status of women.

13. With regard to national exrerience in improving the status of rural women, she
emphasized that her country's legislati~n recogni~ed women's role as mother, wife
and worker and granted her various rights - the right to retain her maiden nwne
after marriage, rights with respect to children in case of divorce, the right to
vote. However, there remained one point on which there was no real equality
between men and womena women were generally less well paid than men, espe~1811y in
the lower ranks of society, where, in spite of the lows, maternity was an obstacle
to the access of women to the labour market. In other words, poverty was the
factor which most prevented women from enjoying tp~ rights estublished by low.

14. Economic problems notwithstanding, much had been done to advance women in
Colombia, and progress had been made in several areas (fertility reduction,
migratlon of girls, reducing family size and upgrading educatiouul levels).
Government efforts were aimed chiefly at consolidating the role already played by
Colombian women in thtt country's economic life.

15. Of all of Colombia's development programmes, she wished to draw particular
attention to those that had been operating for severa) years in rural areas. The
Government. had enljea'/oured to guarantee women ac<:ess to faci litias that would
enable them t.o ongage in proI.1\lctivp. Inbour, such "'.1 l09.nd, crp.r:lU., technic,",l
assistance and training. Women farmers in Colombia were given technical training
so they could be more effective agents for development and pronuce18 of wealth.
Such programmes Here aimed at ensuring women'6 participation in projocts that

I, , ,
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.3/44/SR.24
English
Page 5

helped generate employment and income and improved family nutrition levels. The
programmes involved Imall org~nization., generelly comprising some 15 women, which,
after receiving special credit and technical advice, would be able to engage in a
wide range of activitiesl marketing their crops, food processing, small-scale
primary production a~d handicrafts production. Although not all the programmes had
been successful, they had nevertheless been an effective vehicle for training eld a
source of income for the community. Thanks to those programmes, women in Colombia
had been able to obtain better training, increase their income, reed their families
better and gain self-confidence, as a result, they continued to participate more
actively in the economic, political and social life of their community.

16. Misl DE SILYb (Sri Lanka) laid that although Sri Lanka had had the world's
first woman prime minister, women continued to be poorly represented in
decision-making bodies there. Her delegation thus believed that the issue of
equality in poJitical participation and decision-making should be ~ priority
theme. In fact, the 1978 Constit~tion contained provisions to eliminate
discrimination against women which had allowGd them to enter fields oreviously
considered the exclusive domain of men.

17. Legislative measure. to eliminate all forms of discrimination against women
had not been implemented on the scale desired. It was therefore imperative that
Member Stete. should remove the economic, ~ocial and cultural barriers to the
implementation of such measures.

18. Her delegation supported the priority themes selected for the 1990 session of
the Commission on the StatuI of Women as set out in the Secretary-GeneralIs report
(A/44/511) and urged the international community to redouble its efforts to realize
the goals of the Nairobi Forward-looking Strategies and thus integrate women in
development. The informal paper prepared by the Division for the Advancement of
Women made it clear that little progress had been achieved, largely for a lack of
resources. She nevertheless welcomed the fact that 99 countries had already
ratified or acceded to the Convention on the Elimination of All Forms of
Discrimination against Women. She urged other countries to do likewise.

19. While the number of women in the labour force had increased. women's salaries
continued to be markedly lower than those of men, particularly in developing
countries. Illiteracy, which also contributed to women's unemployment, was the
underlying cause of that situation. In that connection, it should be noted that
the llteracy rate for women in Sri Lanka was 61 per cent in rural areas
and 91 per cent in urban centres, which explained the fact that 45 per cent of all
persons holding professional and technical positions were women.

20. The theme of peace was particularly important. Her delegation believed that
women must play a bigger role in decision-making and policy formulation in matters
relating to peace and international co-operation. Accordingly, she welcomed the
decision to discus. that subject in depth at the 1992 session of the Commission on
the Status of Women.

1 •••
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.3/44/SR.24
Bnglish
Page 6

(Mi •• de S~lva, Sri Lanka)

21. With regard to the Secretary-GeneralIs report on the situation of women in
rural areas (A/44/516), her delegation wished to see a strength~ning o( local
institutions for the advancement of women, especially national women's
institutions. It was disturbing to note that little progress had been made in the
preceding year in increasing the number of women in Professional posts within the
United Nations system. It wa& to be hoped that that situation wo~ld be rectified
without delay, in keeping with the provisions of General Assembly resolution
40/258 B of 18 December 1985.

22. She welcomed the evaluation being conducted by the Committee on the
Blimination of Discrimination against Women on the progress achieved by Member
States in implementing the Convention I she recalled also that her country's second
periodic report, which had been submitted in December 1981, had nut yet been
conside red by the Cor:uni t tee.

23. She concluded by paying a tribute to the important activities carried out by
United Nations bodies, especially the United Nations Development Fund Cor Women and
the International Research and Training Institute for the Advancement of Women, as
well as by non-govermental organizations and the South Asian Association for
Regional Co-operation.

24. Mrs. SIPILA (Finland), speaking on agenda item 104 (b), recalled that the
United Nations Development Fund for Women (UNIFEM) had promoted and implemented
projects which had resulted in the full integration of women in all aspects of
development.

25. The United Nations system had already devoted human and material resources to
the promotion of women. Her delegation was encouraged by the wide range of steps
taken by various intergovernmental bodies, and especially by the inter-agency
co-ordination which existed in that area and constituted the only way of preventing
th. waste or overlapping of resourc.s. In that context, her delegation attached
particular importance to the establishment of women-in-development units in
organizations. More attention should be paid to that issue in the implementation
of UNDP and UNIFEM programmes.

26. The increasing number of national committees for UNIFEM was proof of the
growing support for the Fund's special role. The first national committee for
UNIFEM had been established in Finland in February 1981. UNIFEM had arranged
global meetings to promote that activity, the ~ost recent of which had been held in
Finland in 1988 and had been attended by 22 countries. At that meeting, it had
be~n decided to investigate tta formation of a world federation of UNIFEM national
committees. The federation would hold its first meeting in New York in 1989 while
the General Assembly was in session. Invitations had been sent to 15 countries
that had either established or planned to establish national associations or
committees.

I • ••Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.3/44/SR.24
English
Page 7

(Mr.h- S1911a, Finland)

27. The importance of popular participation in mobilizing grass-roots support was
obvious. Proof of that had been demonstrated by UNICEF, which, while working with
many non-governmontal organizations, had a mechanism for national committees which
had been incorporated into its own structure and provided strong support.

28. The same could be achieved in the case of UNIFEM if the wOl'ld federation of
UNIFEM national committees was authorized to speak in the Governing Council of UNDP
when questions of interest to the Fund were considered, thereby enabling the
federation to co-operate and work closely with the Council on matters of mutual
interest.

29. Finland acknowledged the great support given to UNIFEM by numerous national
and international organizations, and partiCUlarly by women's organizations in
consultative status with the Economic and Social Council.

30. In Finland, the Finnish National Association for UNIFEM had several thousand
members who contributed to the activities of the organization through membership
fees. Its membership also included 50 national organizations that formed
information channels to about half a million people. The major part of the income
directed to UNIFEM projects came from a very active network consisting currently of
81 local committees in all parts of the country. The system had shown its
effectiveness by the amount of contributions made by the Finnish National
Association for UNIFEM. From 1981 through 1989, the total had come to
SUS 650,000. She pointed out an error on page 21 of annex III of document
A/44/389s the total sum paid by the Finnish National Association for UNIFEM was
474,036 dollars. An official United Nations document ought to give exact figures.

31. Her Govflrnment had shown a growing interest and confidence in UNIFEM, for it
had in the past few years become one of its major donors. Finland had just pledged
5 million markkaa for 1990, an increase of 61.3 per cent over 1989.

32. In conClusion, Finland expressed concern that for many women, particularly in
the developing countries, economic and social developments during the 1980s had not
brought any advantages and what was happening was Lhe feminization of poverty. The
consequences of adjustment policies had too often been borne by the poor, And
p~rticularly by women.

33. Finland believed it was crucially important to develop accurate statistical
indicators showing that women were receiving an insufficient proportion of benefits
and that their potential for the development of their countries was being
un~erutilized. A knowledge of the situation would increase an understanding of the
need to provide UNIFEM with sufficient means to remedy it.

34. Ms, ANSELMl (Italy) said that she fully endorsed the statement made by the
representative of France on behalf of the European community emphasizing the
support of the Twelve for the Nairobi Strategies. The first results of their
implementation were, however, disappointing. Even though the Convention on the
Eliminaticn of All Forms of Discrimination against Women provided an adequate legal

I • ••
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C. 3/44/SR. 24
English
Page 8

(Ha. Anselmi, Italy)

basis and was an unprecedented historical event, equality between men and women was
far from being an everyday reality. To achieve that, women must be guaranteed
access to political power, because for the moment they represented on the average
world wide only 10 per cent of office-holders.

35. The par~icipation of women in economic, social and cultural development had
not advanced much either. To be sure, there had been the economic crisis, but
women ought none the less to be able to take on a greater role, not only in the
area of education but also in the other sectors of society. Rural women deserved
particular attention from the point of view of education but especially of health.
Any remedies proposed should be part of a comprei.ensive approach, covering
education, employment. political life, the family, and social services, for any
improvement in ~ne area would have a positive impact on the others. The
Forward-looking Strategies must therefore once again be resolutely put into effect.

36. She explained how in her country the condition of women had improved over the
last five years. Italian women were striving to develop a culture of peace and for
peace, based on tolerance, dialogue, solidarity and action against violence.
However, despite their influence in the political parties and in the country, women
had hardly any opportunity to exercise an influence within Italian institutions.
If women constituted 12 per cent of the office holders, that was thanks above all
to the Italian Communist Party, to which 60 per cent of the women elected
belonged. The Chamber of Deputies was, however, presided over by a woman and the
Government did have one woman minister and three women vice-ministers. The
Commission for Equality between Men and Women, over which she presided, was
preparing an informational campaign to increase the number of successful women
candidates in the 1990 elections. For all the political parties, quotas had been
set which guaranteed that 15 to 30 per cent of those elected would be women. The
representation of women in trade unions was also making headway, but generally the
process had to be accelerated by bringing about a change at all levels in women's
cultural and other attitudes.

37. Efforts had been made in the labour field as well. Although in Italy only
37 per cent of the jobs were held by women, a majority of the young peopl~ finding
a first job were girls. There were as many girls as boys in the last years of
secondary school. Nevertheless, girls had to be given more information in order to
direct them towards the new technologies and the scientific disciplines, where the
number of female students was 20 to 25 per cent lower than the number of male
students. Nrte should be taken of the work being done by the Equal Opportunity
Committee of the Ministry of Labour, and also at the regional and local levels, to
bring an end to all forms of direct and indirect discrimination against women. At
any rate, i~ was currel,tly an established cultural fact that women no longer looked
upon work o. a passing experience but as something they could contemplate as a
lifelong means of expression and creation. Such an evolution was also making
itself felt in the agricultural sector, where the betterment of living, housing and
schooling conditions was allowing women to play a large economic role in both
individual farms and co-operatives. Rural women had also benefited from the
adoption of a single inheritance system.

I •••
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



AlC.3/44/SR.24
English
Page 9

(MS. Anselmi. Italy)

38. In 1986, the Italian Parliament had extended maternity protection to women in
the areas of trade, handicrafts and agriculture and it was currently studying a new
law on parental leave. In addition, attempts were being made in Italy to protect
the dignity of women. Violence within and without the family was being reported
with increasing frequency. Unforlunately, a basic cultural disagreement between
men and women was preventing the adoption of a new law that had been under review
for a number of years prohibiting all forms of violence against women and minors.
National action was being considered to oblige the media to respect dignity of
women and to promote a culture that celebrated the value of each individual, and
therefore of every woman, because at the root of physical violence there was always
a moral violence that in the end lent legitimacy to it.

39. Mrs. SIMHA (Israel) said that she would speak )n the problem of battered
women, the most serious manifestation of discrimination against women, because it
was in the home that the principles of equality, development and peace must first
be applied. The family being the natural and fundamental unit of society, it was
entitled to protection from the State. However, in many respects, the law was
sometimes ineffective.

40. During the last decade, the problem of domestic violence had attracted more
attention. especially thanks to the women's movement, which had provided help for
battered women and at the same time raised public consciousness. Domestic violence
was essentially a social problem because the civil and criminal laws passed by most
countries on the matter did not seem to suffice. In fact, most often brutal
treatment was tolerated and kept secret in the family and when it was brought to
the attention of the judicial authorities they preferred not to intervene, on the
grounds of respecting the privacy of the parties. Consequently the discreet
intervention of social welfare services seemed to be indicated. Noting that no
sector of the population was immune from violence, she enumerated about a dozen
potential causes as well as various circumstances under which the common forms of
violence surfaced.

41. Some countries provided shelters for battered women, but that was inadequate.
It was better to prohibit, under penalty, the husband's access to the matrimonial
home while still requiring him to contribute to household maintenance. That was
the practice in Israel, where battered women weld at the same time offered the
possibility of going to shelters. In her view. the only way of improving the
situation was through legislation and law enforcement. Interesting recommendations
had been adopted in November 1983 in Vienna by the International Seminar on
"jolence in the Family, where she herself had submitted a substantive report. In
the course of the last decade, all the conferences on women had stressed the need
to ensure the dignity, equality and security of each member of the family, with
particular emphasis on abuse of women and children. In 1985 in Milan, the Seventh
United Nations Congress on the Prevention of Crime and the Treaunent of Offenders
had adopted several resolutions on the question.

42. In the area of domestic violence, time would certainly be needed to bring
about a change in attitudes, but becau&e the task was difficult did not mean that
it did not uep.d to be done.

/ ...
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.3/44/SR.24
English
Page 10

43. ~~. KABA-CAMARA (Cote d'Ivoire) said that, although the United Nations Decade

for Women had not lived up to expectations, it had at least given women a new

impetus by making them aware of the need to improve their status and their

contribution to their countries' development. Since the goals of the Decade had

not been achieved, it was necessary to strengthen mechanisms and to draw the

appropriate lessons from its failure.

44. In the area of equality, considerable progress had been made in the normative

field: many countries had acceded to the Convention on the Elimination of All

Forms of Discrimination against Women, and new legislation had been adopted.

However, the situation was completely different with regard to education, work,

pay, and access to capital goods and to decision-making bodies; women must

understand that equality would never be given to them, they would have to win it.

In order to do so, they must be properly armed. Most of the time, however, women

were over-burdened with domestic chores and weakened by illness and hunger, and

were in no position to take an interest in political life. That explained the

importance of the second goal of the Nairobi Forward-looking Strategies, namely,

development. The international community unanimously recognized the importance of

women as agents of development and change. Since the implementation of programmes

for the advancement of women had suffered from the economic crisis, perhaps the

Strategies should be redirected towards less ambitious and less burdensome goals,

such as the lightening of household chores, family planning, literacy programmes,

primary health care and income-generating women's activities.

45. While her delegation encouraged the work of UNIFEM, it regretted that African

women did not derive sufficient benefit from its services, apparently because of a

lack of information. UNESCO, UNICEF, UNDP and WHO should co-operate more closely

in order to take multisectoral action in favour of women in developing countries.

Her delegation commended the role of the International Research and Training

Institute for the Advancement of Women (INSTRAW) in the collection of data and

information from the public on the status of women, and hoped that the Institute

would disseminate the conclusions of its work more widely. She also commended the

Division for the Advancement of Women for the work it had accomplished with limited

means.

46. With regard to the goal of peace, in 1984, the President of Cote d'Ivoire had

recommended that Ivorian women teach peace to their children. It was the mission

of all mothers in the world to CUltivate peace in the hearts and minds of men; in

that way, women would provide the security and protection afforded by family life,

in particular against the dangers of drug abuse and delinquency.

47. Her delegation called for solidarity among women, from both the cities and the

countryside and from the North and from the South, as well as s~lidarity among men

and women - whose roles were complementary - in order to usher in a world of peace,

harmony and prosperity.

I • ••

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.3/44/SR.24
ErujJU.h
Page 11

48. Mr. KNIT (C.echo.lovakia) .aid that Czechollovakia appreciated the .ffort.
mad. by the United Nation. to .nable women to enjoy their rights fully, to .nsure
their full equality with men, to improve their Itatu. and to translate the Nairobi
Forward-looking Strategie. into .pecific m.alure. and programm.s at the national,
r.gional aDd international l.vel.. The Unit.d Nations D.cad. for Women and the
Forward-looking Strategie. had under.cored the common interests and the priorities
to b. taken into account in ord.r to improve the status of women at all lev.ls.
The .lackening, indeed the halting, of progre•• toward. equality made it n.c•••ary
to give greater attention to the implementation of the Strat.gi•• , which .hould
r.main topioal. That goal would be furth.r.d by the conv.ning, in 1~95, of another
world confer.nce.

49. Thank. to the revi.ion of it. agenda, the rationallzation of it. work and the
definition of priority theme., the Commis. ion on the Statu. of Women had been able
to perform it. ta.k at it. thirty-third •••• ion, in which Czecho.lovakia had taken
an active part in it. capacity as Vice-Chairman. A~ it••xt.nd.d 1990 session, the
Commi.sion would be able to consid.r ways of improving and accelerating the
implementation of the Strategie. and agre. on a date for the convening of a world
conference.

50. For Cz.choslovakia, the full participation of wom.n in political life and
decision-making wa. a very important a.p.ct of the implem.ntation of lhe
Strat.gies. The aim of the Czechoslovak Union of Women, a voluntary social
organization, wa. to encourage mar. women to participate in the restructuring and
d.mocratization of .ociety. Th. task of the Union was to report all cases of
d. facto in.quality and a180 to look for ways of .nhancing the Itatus of women in
the cont.xt of the d.velopment of .oci.ty. Th. ablence of discrimination against
women wal a reality of C.echo.lovak lif., moreover, article 27 of the Con.titution
provided for the equality of women within the family, in the workplace, and in
loci.ty.

51. C.echo.lo·'akia, which had be.n one of the firlt countries to sign the
Conv.ntion on the Elimination of All rnrml of Discrimination agalnst Wom.n,
w.lcomed the .ffortl of the United Nation. and other international organiaations to
eliminate discrimination against women. It went without saying that Czechoslovakia
scrupulously r••p.cted the provi.ionl of that instrument.

52. Czechoslovakia attachftd Iml,?ortance to the work of the Committee on the
Elimination of Discrimination against Women and supported the proposal that the
Secretariat should provld. greater a.sistance to the Committee in its work. The
Committe.'s competence and obj.ctivity in considering reportl and other iSlues
remained a key element. C••chollovakia approv.d the Committee's efforts to
rationaliae its method. of work. It was neceslary to find a way of enabling
States, particularly States partie. to the Convention, to derive greater benefit
from the Committee'. knowledge and experience.

53. C.echo.lovakia had already submitted its .econd periodic report to the
Secretariat (CBDAW/C/13/Add,25).

/ ...
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.3/44/SR.24
!nglhh
Page 12

54. Mi•• y!RL!ZZA (Vene.uela), Ipeaking on agenda item 104 (a), noted with concern
that major ob.tacle. had prevented the attainment of the goals of the
Forward-looking Strategle.. One e.ample wal the limited participation of women in
policy-making and their low level of representation in senior civil service posts
in general. That was why her delegation believed that there should be an
interregional con.u1tation on the role of women in public life. The status of
women within the United Nationl My.tem it.elf was another example. Venezuela urged
the Secretary-General to continue hi' efforts to reach an overall rate of
30 per cent in the percentage of women in Professional and decision-making
po,itions by 1990.

55. She emphasised the re1atlon'hip between the statu. of women and the economic
situation. The deterioration of the economic situation had hindered the
development of polieie. which would permit the integration of men and women on an
equal footing In the economic process of countries affected by the crisis.
Venezuela endor.ed the Ideal e.pre••ed in the report on the protection of women in
area. affected by armed conflict and believed that women should participate more
actively in decision-making with re.pect to peace.

5&. Referring to the note by the Secretary-General on the activities of the United
Nations Development Fund for Women (A/44/389), she reiterated her country's support
for that organ, Which played an important catalysing role by making possible a
systematic ezamination of problems related to the status of women, ~nd whose
p~o9rammes had benefited many developing countries, She was particularly pleased
that during the biennium 1988-1989 the Fund had directe~ certain of its activities
to the Itatus of women in Latin America.

57. Her delegation had examined with interest the report of the Secretary-General
on the elimination of all forml of discrimination against women (1,/44/457), which
noted that 18 December 1989 would be the tenth anniversary of the adoption of the
Convention on the Elimination of All Forms of Discrimination against Women.
Venezuela was one ~f the 99 States parties to that Convention, and in 1986 it had
submitted an initial report on the application of the Convention
(CEDAW/C/5/Add.24). The second report, which had already been submitted through
the Centre for Social Development and Humanitarian Affairs, concerned the period
1985-1988.

58. Current Venezuelan legislation was in full accordance with the provisions of
the Convention. Over the pas~ few years, the Venezuelan Governm~nt had taken
various steps to ensure equal opportunity for women in all fields of national
life. However, various obstacles beyond the Government's control prevented real
progress from being made in that field. The ma1n such obstacle was the lack of the
economic and human resources required for development. The economic crisis of
recent years had adversely affecte~ the Government's social policy, especially
measures in favour of women.

59. Neverthelesl, over the past two years, Venezuela had initiated priority
programmes to give women management training, to combat violence in the family and
to promote women to managerial posta.

I • ••

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.3/44/SR.24
Englhh
Page 13

(Ml" VerlellD. y.neluelo)

60. Howev.r, it Ihoul4 b••mphali.ed that women were not sufficiently informed of
th.ir rights. they were not always aware of the rights provided Oy their country's
Conltitution and .v.n lell aware of those provided by the Convention. V.n••u.lo
therefore attached gr.at importance to the introductory seminars on the Convent\on
orgooi••d by the Divillon for the Advancement of Wom.n at Athens and Guatemala
City, in January and Augult 1989. It was hoped that other .uch seminars would be
organiled to promote awar.ne.s of the provisions of the Convention and the methods
of submission of national reportl, in order to facilitate implementation of the
Convention.

61. Ven.lu.la f.lt it wa. a highly important and timely decision to hold an
international commemorative seminar on the tenth annlversary of the adoption of the
Convention.

62. In conclu.loD, .he laid that her delegation approved of the report of the
Secretary-G.n.ral on the International Research and Training Institute for the
Advancement of WomeD (A/44/416). The activities of the Institute concerning
statisticI and itl programme. for training, participation and integration of women
in developm.nt had been mOlt ben.ficial to ell countries that wish.d to promote
real participation of women in all lectors of society.

63. MI. SAELZLER (German Democratic Republic), commentiny on items 103 and 104,
emphalized that the advancement of women wo. a world-wide problem which should be
addre••ed by every politician. One could not ignore the opinions and the
activities of wom.n, who r.pre••nt.d one half of mankind, when dealing with
international security, the elimination of underdevelopment or the protection of
the environment, in other words, pro~lem8 which concerned both the present and
future of humanity.

64. In the more than 40 years of work by the United NatioDs in that field,
18 December 1979 was an important date marking the adoption of the Convention on
the Elimination of All rorms of Discrimination against Women.

65. Since then, 99 States had signed or ratified the Conventionl more than 50
States, however, had not yet done so.

66. The majority of Member States had adopted the maasures envisaged under the
Convention and w.re .triving to implement equal rightl between men and women. In
his latest report OD the implementation of the Nairobi rOI'tard-Iooking Strategies
(A/44/511), the Secretary-General underscored the progress achieved in that field.
There were still certain obstacles to the full achievement of those goals. That
WDS very clearly r.flected in the situation of women and children under apartheid,
as well as in that of Palestinian women and children inside and outside the
occupied territorie••

/ ...
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.3/44/SR.24
English
Page 14

67. ~:~ Constitution of the German Democratic Republic provided for equal
opportunities for men and women. However, experience showed that legal foundations
alone were not sufficient. Full implementation of the relevant provisions
presupposed political, economic, social, intellectual and cultural changes. Equal
rights were not .omething that came automatically. It was, and for many years
would remain, necessary to overcome outmoded traditions and customs. That was not
only true of th~ public sector (for example, 9ducation or vocational trainin9) but
also of family life, where certain traditions hindered women from achieving their
fullest potential.

68. Many women in her country had made full use of the opportunities offered
theml 86.4 per cent of women had completed vocational training and 31 per cent
held senior posts 1n economy.

69. In contrast, the percentage of women assigned to high-level posts in
gov8lr~ent agencies or in executive decision-making was lamentably low, because in
torms of expertise or of capabilities, women were fully able to fill such posts.

70. Her delegation attached great importance to United Nations work in favour of
women and felt that an exchange of views and experience would help to implement the
N~irobi Strategies world wide within a framework of peaceful international
co·operation.

11. Mr, ZA~ACKl (Poland), speaking on items 104 and lOS, said that the NairObi
Conference had placed emphasis on common interests and priorities and had provided
in itR Forward-looking Strategies valuable guidelines for the advancement of women,
thus promoting a wide-ranging discussion of the question, which obliged Governments
to pAy duo Qttention to those problems in their national and international policies.

72. The implemAntation of the Strategie~ was still meeting with Aconomic and
pOlitlcal obstacles which were very difficult to overcome, but less so than the
social barriers related to attitudes and trAditions. His country was convinced
that the United Nations could and should help to eliminate those barriers by
eacoul'aging t.he Member States to establish at the notional level governmental
orgnnR Cor tho Advancement of women. Poland commended the work of the Division for
t.hf\ Artvi'lncemflnto of WomAn of thA Centre for Social nevelopment and Humanitarian
Affnirs at Vienna, as well as that of the Commission on the Status of Women and the
Committee (or the Elimination of Discrimination against Women.

71. AIt.hough various efforts had been made over the past decade to promote
equnlity between men and women, it should be noted that the Strategies had not been
implemented everywhere to the same extent. The debate during the thirty-third
session oC the Commission on the Status of Women had revealed that, following
significant progress for women in the 1970s, advancement had slowed and, in s~me

~ases, oven stopped in the 19aOs. If the goal of equality of opportunity by the
year 2000 were to be achieved, a great effort would have to be made to revive the
pace of progress.

I •••
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



II/C.J/411SH.H
t:n\J! {\",~.

Pflq" 15

74. His dele9~tlon considered the 1990 extended sesRlon ot the CommiR~ion aB an
important on~, sinc~ th~ Commission wouJd not only review and BpprBlsa the progress
in the implementation uC Lha Sllate9JeM, but would ~180 make a recommendation to
the General Alsembly on the convening of a world conference, in accordance with
Economic and Social Council resolution 1987/20. Such a conforenct! would contribute
to broadening political support and 1995 seemed to be the most appropriate dote to
convene it. It also .eemed reasonable to prolong the validity ot the Strategies
beyond the year 2000.

75. With a view to implementing the StrategieR at the national level, his
Government had in 1986 adopted a governmental pro9rMlme of act ion spffd f i (~al11'

de.igned to improve the socio-professional st~tUG of women and their living and
working condition.. All the ministries concerned and all local authoritiea were
requ.ired to submit annual reports on its implement.ation to the GoverMlent
Plenipotentiary for Women's Affairs, The latter had submitted his first report to
the Council of Miniatera in the autumn of 1988. Some questions, such 09 the
improvement of women's working conditions and their increased participation in
management, woulO have to be analyseO from a longer-term perspective. His
Government was aware that much remained to be done to remove the institutional and
attitudinal barriers which prevented women from exercisiug real choice and from
participating fully in Polish society.

76. At the end of 1988, his Government had submitted to the Secretary-General its
.econd report on the implementation ot the Convention on the Elimination of All
Forms of Discrimination against Women, which would be considered by the
corresponding Committee in January 1991.

77. Mi" CHENG Phobo1 (Democratic Kampuchea) said that, despite the progress
achieved in the advancement of women since the proclamation of the United Nations
Decade for Women and the adoption of the Nairobi Forward-looking Strategies,
gender-base of discrimination remained widespread and an ever-increasing percentage
of women lived in poverty, illiteracy and ignorance, as the Secretary-General had
pointed out in his report (A/44/511). Her delegation was satisfied with the way in
which the United Nations system was implementing the Strategies and continued to
give tull support to the activities being undertaken, hut felt that it was
absolutely essential for international efforts to be supported by action at the
national level,

78. She looked forward with interest to the extended session of the Commission on
the Status of Women to be held in 1990 to review and appraise progress in
implementing the Forward-looking Strategies. The preliminary stUdy carried out by
the Division for the Advancement of Women pursuant to Economic and Social Council
resolution 1989132 showed that little progress had been made with regard to the
advancement of women. particularly in developing countries, which were wholly
concerned with achieving economic Belf-reliance, self-determination and
independence.

/ ...
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



~IC. '/4!l/S[L 24
';ngliah
5'a98 16

(Mb, ChIn\) Phgbol. Dgmgc;rotic l_ycbID)

19. While Cambodian wom~n 8hared the concerns of other women arounO tho world,
their first priority was to defend their motherland. They h~d therefore
participated voluntarily in full co-operation and on an equal footing with mftn, in
all alpeet, of national re.i.tanee. That situation was not unique to Cambodial
women in Europe during the Second World War and women touay in South Africa,
Palestine and el.,where had been or were performing the same tasks. Witho~t the
part1c1pation or Cambodian women, the national re.istanee would not have been so
firmly anchored. Their participation was only a mean8 of bringing the aggre8sor8
to the negotiating table in orOer to find a comprehensive political 80lution to the
Cambodian problem .In accordance with the five-point peace plan put forward by the
nation'. leaOer, Prince Norodl)m SihanouJc. That l'·lan condsted of two key
elements I (i) the genuine and total withdrawal of all Vietnamese force8 and
settlers from C~bodia unOer the lupervision of an international control mechanism
operating unOer the au.pic•• of the UniteO Nations and assisted by the
peace-keeping fore,., and (11) ~.nuin. nationBl reconciliation within a provisional
quadripartite Government headed by Prince NoroOom Sihanouk. That was the only
means of achieving a balance of force. to aniUfe 1&it1ng peace, security and
8tability in Cambodia, enabling the Cambodian people to exercise their right to
.elf-determination through tree elections under United Nations .upervi8ion. By
categorically rejecting tho.e two elements, Vi~t Ham was clearly refusing to accept
any comprehensive political settlement and was pursuing its colonlalist occupation
by means of the puppet regime it haO installed and through the considerable numbers
of its forces disguised in the ranks of the puppet army and conceal~d among the
Vietnamese settler. in Cambodia. Tho,. 1 million settlers were part of a
premeOitated plan to prevent the Cambodian people from freely exercising their
right to self-dQte~mination through general election after the withOrawal of the
Vietnamese forces from Cambodia. The Vietnamization of Cambodia had brought about
a disastrous change in the social and cultural structure of the people's daily life
and was bound to have grave implications for the future of Cambodia and generations
to come. Faced with such a situation, Cambodian women demanded that the issue of
the settlers be dealt with as part of the comFrehensive settloment to the problem
of KamlJuchea.

80. Forged in 11 years of common struggle, the Coalition Government of Democratic
~8mpuchea continued to grow and gather strength. Cambodian women looked forward
with optimism to a future of peace within the framework of genuine national
reconciliation. In partnership with men, they would contribute actively to
establishing a liberal democratic parliamentary regime with a free-market economy.
That aspiration had been defined in the general principles for a draft constitution
of Cambodia agreed upon by all components of the Coalition Government. Even after
liberation, Cambodian women would strive to ensure that there WIIS no deviation from
that goal __nd would work in co-operation with the international communJty for peace
and prosperity. Oeva.tated by the war, Kampuchea would need foreign aid and
investment for reconstruction anO development in order to guarantee its
independence, neutrality and territorial integritr.

I • ••
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.3/44/SR.24
EngU.h
Page 17

81. ~L-MIGNOTT (Jamaica) laid that the Plan of Action baled on the three themel
of "Equality, Development and Peace" calleO for women to play an inte9rat8d role in
all international affairs. At its extended se.sion to be held in 1090, the
Commission on the Status of Women would carry out its first review and apprbisal of
the implementation of the Strategiel, five y~ar. after their adoption, enabling it
to aSless what pr09rel. had been made, identify the obstacles to be overcome and
define the relationlhip between the priorities set forth in the Strategies and the
global economic and 80cial trend. which had an impact on their implementation.

82. The economic crisis had led to the adoption of policies emphalizing short-term
corrective measures and at time. harlh structural adjultment measures at 9reat
social COlt, which had affected women above all becaule thole policies had eroded
programme8 for the advancement of women. The report called for by the Commonwealth
Head. of Government had Itre.led the ne.d for a different approach to the il.ue of
structural adjustment. Thole policies must be reshaped in an inte9rated approach
that would involve not only organilation. dealing with womenls concerns but allo
the economic forums which decided on economic policies and discussed adjustment
strategies.

83. As the Executive Director of the United Nations Population Fund had
emphasized, population and environmental iSluel affected women directly. Women
mU8t therefore be educated and encouraged to participate in decision-making in that
field. Womenll problems Ihould be viewed in all their ramifications and women
should be given particular attention until they were fully integrated 1n national
and international plannin9.

84. Turning to agenda item 103, .he said that the Convention on the Elimination of
All FormD of Discrimination againlt Women had helped considerably to encourage
countries to bring their legi.lation into line with the objective. of internatiol£al
instrumentl. De jure discrimination had largely been eliminated, elsentially
because count,ies were respecting their obligations under the Convention. Now
ratified by 99 countries, the Convention could be regarded a. the mOlt successful
international instrument. When con.idering country reports, the Committee on the
Elimination of Dilcrimination against Women drew attention to the de jure practice
of States and to de facto implementation of the law. The reporting obli9ations
under the Convention encouraged Governments to review their own legal systems. Her
country, as a party to the Convention, believed that the Committeels work was
essential to the implementation and follow-up of the objective. of the Decade.

85. Referring to the pessimistic view expressed by the Dir6ctor of the Division
for the Advancement of Women concerning the stagnation and regrellion of programmes
as a result of the economic crisi., a view confirmed by the detailed analysis of
conditions influencing the situation of women ~iven in the 1989 World Survey DD the
BQle of WQm.n in DeyelQpment, she pointed out that there had nevertheless been
significant progress and emphasized the importance of 9iving the Strategies broad
support at the pollcy- and decilion-maklng levels.

The melting rQI' at 12,50 u,m.

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library




